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opportunities for comment on the 
public interest after the issuance of any 
final initial determination in this 
investigation. 

Persons filing written submissions 
must file the original document and 12 
true copies thereof on or before the 
deadlines stated above with the Office 
of the Secretary. Submissions should 
refer to the docket number (‘‘Docket No. 
2810’’) in a prominent place on the 
cover page and/or the first page. The 
Commission’s rules authorize filing 
submissions with the Secretary by 
facsimile or electronic means only to the 
extent permitted by section 201.8 of the 
rules (see Handbook for Electronic 
Filing Procedures, http://www.usitc.gov/ 
secretary/fed_reg_notices/rules/ 
documents/ 
handbook_on_electronic_filing.pdf). 
Persons with questions regarding 
electronic filing should contact the 
Secretary (202–205–2000). 

Any person desiring to submit a 
document to the Commission in 
confidence must request confidential 
treatment. All such requests should be 
directed to the Secretary to the 
Commission and must include a full 
statement of the reasons why the 
Commission should grant such 
treatment. See 19 CFR 201.6. Documents 
for which confidential treatment by the 
Commission is properly sought will be 
treated accordingly. All nonconfidential 
written submissions will be available for 
public inspection at the Office of the 
Secretary. 

This action is taken under the 
authority of section 337 of the Tariff Act 
of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), 
and of sections 201.10 and 210.50(a)(4) 
of the Commission’s Rules of Practice 
and Procedure (19 CFR 201.10, 
210.50(a)(4)). 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: June 1, 2011. 

James R. Holbein, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2011–13889 Filed 6–3–11; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Inv. No. 337–TA–774] 

In the Matter of Certain Electronic 
Devices Having a Digital Television 
Receiver and Components Thereof; 
Notice of Institution of Investigation 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission. 
ACTION: Institution of investigation 
pursuant to 19 U.S.C. 1337. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a 
complaint was filed with the U.S. 
International Trade Commission on 
April 29, 2011, under section 337 of the 
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 
U.S.C. 1337, on behalf of Zenith 
Electronics LLC of Lincolnshire, Illinois. 
The complaint alleges violations of 
section 337 based upon the importation 
into the United States, the sale for 
importation, and the sale within the 
United States after importation of 
certain electronic devices having a 
digital television receiver and 
components thereof by reason of 
infringement of certain claims of U.S. 
Patent No. 5,598,220 (‘‘the ‘220 patent’’); 
U.S. Patent No. 5,629,958 (‘‘the ‘958 
patent’’); and U.S. Patent No. 5,636,251 
(‘‘the ‘251 patent’’). The complaint 
further alleges that an industry in the 
United States exists as required by 
subsection (a)(2) of section 337. 

The complainant requests that the 
Commission institute an investigation 
and, after the investigation, issue an 
exclusion order and cease and desist 
order. 
ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for 
any confidential information contained 
therein, is available for inspection 
during official business hours (8:45 a.m. 
to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the 
Secretary, U.S. International Trade 
Commission, 500 E Street, SW., Room 
112, Washington, DC 20436, telephone 
202–205–2000. Hearing impaired 
individuals are advised that information 
on this matter can be obtained by 
contacting the Commission’s TDD 
terminal on 202–205–1810. Persons 
with mobility impairments who will 
need special assistance in gaining access 
to the Commission should contact the 
Office of the Secretary at 202–205–2000. 
General information concerning the 
Commission may also be obtained by 
accessing its Internet server at http:// 
www.usitc.gov. The public record for 
this investigation may be viewed on the 
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) 
at http://edis.usitc.gov. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: The 
Office of Unfair Import Investigations, 
U.S. International Trade Commission, 
telephone (202) 205–2560. 

Authority: The authority for institution of 
this investigation is contained in section 337 
of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, and 
in section 210.10 of the Commission’s Rules 
of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 
(2011). 

Scope of Investigation: Having 
considered the complaint, the U.S. 
International Trade Commission, on 
May 26, 2011, ordered that: 

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of 
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 

amended, an investigation be instituted 
to determine whether there is a 
violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of 
section 337 in the importation into the 
United States, the sale for importation, 
or the sale within the United States after 
importation of certain electronic devices 
having a digital television receiver and 
components thereof that infringe one or 
more of claims 65 and 66 of the ‘220 
patent; claims 9–12 of the ‘958 patent; 
and claims 1, 2, 4–7, and 10 of the ‘251 
patent, and whether an industry in the 
United States exists as required by 
subsection (a)(2) of section 337; 

(2) For the purpose of the 
investigation so instituted, the following 
are hereby named as parties upon which 
this notice of investigation shall be 
served: 

(a) The complainant is: 
Zenith Electronics LLC, 2000 Millbrook 

Drive, Lincolnshire, IL 60069. 
(b) The respondents are the following 

entities alleged to be in violation of 
section 337, and are the parties upon 
which the complaint is to be served: 
Sony Corporation, 7–1 Konan 1–Chome, 

Minato-ku, Tokyo, 108–0075, Japan. 
Sony Corporation of America, 550 

Madison Avenue, New York, NY 
10022. 

Sony Electronics, Inc., 16530 Via 
Esprillo, San Diego, CA 92127. 
(c) The Office of Unfair Import 

Investigations, U.S. International Trade 
Commission, 500 E Street, SW., Suite 
401, Washington, DC 20436; and 

(3) For the investigation so instituted, 
the Honorable Paul J. Luckern, Chief 
Administrative Law Judge, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, shall 
designate the presiding Administrative 
Law Judge. 

Responses to the complaint and the 
notice of investigation must be 
submitted by the named respondents in 
accordance with section 210.13 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to 
19 CFR 201.16(d)–(e) and 210.13(a), 
such responses will be considered by 
the Commission if received not later 
than 20 days after the date of service by 
the Commission of the complaint and 
the notice of investigation. Extensions of 
time for submitting responses to the 
complaint and the notice of 
investigation will not be granted unless 
good cause therefor is shown. 

Failure of a respondent to file a timely 
response to each allegation in the 
complaint and in this notice may be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of the 
right to appear and contest the 
allegations of the complaint and this 
notice, and to authorize the 
administrative law judge and the 
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Commission, without further notice to 
the respondent, to find the facts to be as 
alleged in the complaint and this notice 
and to enter an initial determination 
and a final determination containing 
such findings, and may result in the 
issuance of an exclusion order or a cease 
and desist order or both directed against 
the respondent. 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: May 31, 2011. 

James R. Holbein, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2011–13854 Filed 6–3–11; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration 

[Docket No. OSHA–2011–0065] 

National Advisory Committee on 
Occupational Safety and Health 
(NACOSH) 

AGENCY: Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration (OSHA), Labor. 
ACTION: Announcement of meetings of 
the National Advisory Committee on 
Occupational Safety and Health 
(NACOSH) and NACOSH subgroups. 

SUMMARY: The National Advisory 
Committee on Occupational Safety and 
Health (NACOSH) will meet June 22, 
2011, in Washington, DC. In 
conjunction with the committee 
meeting, NACOSH subgroups will meet 
on June 21, 2011. 
DATES: NACOSH Meeting: NACOSH will 
meet from 9 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., 
Wednesday, June 22, 2011. 

NACOSH Subgroup Meetings: The 
NACOSH subgroups will meet from 11 
a.m. to 5 p.m., Tuesday, June 21, 2011. 

Submission of Comments, Requests to 
Speak, Speaker Presentations, and 
Requests for Special Accommodation: 
Comments, requests to speak at the 
NACOSH meeting, speaker 
presentations, and requests for special 
accommodations for the NACOSH and 
NACOSH subgroup meetings must be 
submitted (postmarked, sent, 
transmitted) by June 16, 2011. 
ADDRESSES: NACOSH and NACOSH 
Subgroup Meetings: NACOSH and its 
subgroups will meet in Room N–N4437 
A/B/C/D, U.S. Department of Labor, 200 
Constitution Avenue, NW., Washington, 
DC 20210. 

Submission of Comments, Requests to 
Speak and Speaker Presentations: You 
must submit comments, requests to 
speak at the NACOSH meeting and 
speaker presentations, identified by the 

docket number for this Federal Register 
notice (Docket No. OSHA–2011–0065), 
by one of the following methods: 

Electronically: You may submit 
materials, including attachments, 
electronically at http:// 
www.regulations.gov, the Federal 
eRulemaking Portal. Follow the online 
instructions for making submissions. 

Facsimile: If your submission, 
including attachments, does not exceed 
10 pages, you may fax it to the OSHA 
Docket Office at (202) 693–1648. 

Mail, Express Delivery, Messenger, or 
Courier Service: You may submit your 
materials to the OSHA Docket Office, 
Room N–2625, U.S. Department of 
Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue, NW., 
Washington, DC 20210, telephone (202) 
693–2350 (TTY (887) 889–5627). 
Deliveries (hand, express mail, 
messenger, courier service) are accepted 
during the Department of Labor’s and 
OSHA Docket Office’s normal business 
hours, 8:15 a.m. to 4:45 p.m. E.T. 

Requests for Special Accommodation: 
You may submit requests for special 
accommodations for the NACOSH and 
NACOSH subgroup meetings by hard 
copy, telephone, or e-mail to Ms. Veneta 
Chatmon, OSHA, Office of 
Communications, Room N–3647, U.S. 
Department of Labor, 200 Constitution 
Avenue, NW., Washington, DC 20210; 
telephone (202) 693–1999; e-mail 
chatmon.veneta@dol.gov. 

Instructions: All submissions must 
include the Agency name and docket 
number for this Federal Register notice 
(Docket No. OSHA–2011–0065). 
Because of security-related procedures, 
submission by regular mail may result 
in significant delay in receipt. Please 
contact the OSHA Docket Office for 
information about security procedures 
for making submissions by hand 
delivery, express delivery, messenger or 
courier service. For additional 
information about submitting 
comments, requests to speak and 
speaker presentations see the 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION section of 
this notice. 

Comments, requests to speak and 
speaker presentations, including 
personal information provided, will be 
placed in the public docket and may be 
available online. Therefore, OSHA 
cautions interested parties about 
submitting personal information such as 
social security numbers and birthdates. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For 
Press Inquiries: Mr. Earl Hicks, OSHA, 
Office of Communications, U.S. 
Department of Labor, Room N–3647, 
200 Constitution Avenue, NW., 
Washington, DC 20210; telephone (202) 
693–1999. 

For General Information: Ms. Deborah 
Crawford, OSHA, Directorate of 
Evaluation and Analysis, U.S. 
Department of Labor, Room N–3641, 
200 Constitution Avenue, NW., 
Washington, DC 20210; telephone (202) 
693–1932; e-mail 
crawford.deborah@dol.gov. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

NACOSH Meeting 

NACOSH will meet Wednesday, June 
22, 2011, in Washington, DC. NACOSH 
meetings are open to the public. 

Section 7(a) of the Occupational 
Safety and Health Act of 1970 (OSH 
Act) (29 U.S.C. 651, 656) authorizes 
NACOSH to advise the Secretary of 
Labor and the Secretary of Health and 
Human Services on matters relating to 
the administration of the OSH Act. 
NACOSH is a continuing advisory body 
and operates in compliance with the 
OSH Act, the Federal Advisory 
Committee Act (5 U.S.C. App. 2), and 
regulations issued pursuant to those 
laws (29 CFR part 1912a, 41 CFR part 
102–3). 

The tentative agenda of the NACOSH 
meeting includes: 

• Remarks from the Assistant 
Secretary of Labor for Occupational 
Safety and Health (OSHA); 

• Remarks from the Director of the 
National Institute for Occupational 
Safety and Health; 

• Discussion with NIOSH and OSHA 
on Chemical Policy; 

• NACOSH subgroup reports; 
• Discussion on injury and illness 

prevention programs with OSHA staff; 
• Discussion on recordkeeping issues 

with OSHA staff; and 
• Public comments. 

NACOSH meetings are transcribed and 
detailed minutes of the meetings are 
prepared. Meeting transcripts and 
minutes are included in the public 
record of the NACOSH meeting. 

NACOSH Subgroup Meetings 

NACOSH established two subgroups, 
Injury and Illness Prevention Programs 
and Recordkeeping, at the January 20– 
21, 2011, NACOSH meeting. Those 
subgroups will meet from 11 a.m. to 5 
p.m., June 21, 2011, in Room N–4437A/ 
B/C and report back to the full 
committee at the June 22, 2011, 
NACOSH meeting. 

Public Participation 

NACOSH and NACOSH subgroup 
meetings: NACOSH and NACOSH 
subgroup meetings are open to the 
public. Any individual attending 
meetings at the U.S. Department of 
Labor must enter the building at the 
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